KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent County Council held in the Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 23 October 2014.

PRESENT:

Mr P J Homewood (Chairman)
Mr M J Harrison (Vice-Chairman)

Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Mr M J Angell, Mr D Baker, Mr M Baldock, Mr M A C Balfour, Mr R H Bird, Mr H Birkby, Mr N J Bond, Mr A H T Bowles, Mr D L Brazier, Mrs P Brivio, Mr R E Brookbank, Mr L Burgess, Mr C W Caller, Miss S J Carey, Mr P B Carter, CBE, Mr N J D Chard, Mr I S Chittenden, Mr B E Clark, Mrs P T Cole, Mr G Cooke, Mr G Cowan, Mrs M E Crabtree, Ms C J Cribbon, Mr A D Crowther, Mrs V J Dagger, Mr D S Daley, Mr M C Dance, Mr J A Davies, Mrs T Dean, MBE, Mrs M Elenor, Dr M R Eddy. Mr J Elenor, Mr T Gates. Mr G K Gibbens, Mr R W Gough, Ms A Harrison, Mr M Heale, Mr P M Hill, OBE, Mr C P D Hoare, Mrs S V Hohler, Mr S Holden, Mr E E C Hotson, Mrs S Howes, Mr A J King, MBE, Mr J A Kite, MBE, Mr S J G Koowaree, Mr R A Latchford, OBE, Mr R L H Long, TD, Mr G Lymer, Mr T A Maddison, Mr S C Manion, Mr R A Marsh, Mr F McKenna, Mr B Neaves. Mr M J Northey. Mr P J Oakford, Mr J M Ozog, Mr R J Parry. Mr L B Ridings, MBE, Mrs E D Rowbotham. Mr C R Pearman, Mr J E Scholes. Mr W Scobie, Mr T L Shonk, Mr C Simkins, Mr J D Simmonds, MBE, Mr C P Smith, Mr D Smyth, Mrs P A V Stockell, Mr B J Sweetland, Mr A Terry, Mr N S Thandi, Mr R Truelove, Mr M J Vye, Mr M E Whybrow, Mr M A Wickham and Mrs Z Wiltshire

IN ATTENDANCE: David Cockburn (Corporate Director Strategic & Corporate Services), Geoff Wild (Director of Governance and Law) and Denise Fitch (Democratic Services Manager (Council))

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

37. Apologies for Absence

The Director of Governance and Law reported apologies from Mr P Harman, Mr B MacDowall, Mr J Wedgbury and Mrs J Whittle.

38. Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other Significant Interests

- (1) Mr Cowan declared an interest in that both he and his wife were foster carers for Kent County Council.
- (2) Mr Hoare declared an interest in that he was a director of an employment agency and public interest company called Conduit that sought to get young people into employment in the construction industry.

39. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2014 and, if in order, to be approved as a correct record

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2014 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman, subject to the amendment of the following typographical errors, Minute no 31 - (d) "Nijmegen", Minute no 33 + (d) "Members"; (6) – "Mr Carter"; (7) – "priority"; (10) – "saddened"; (11) - "Leader's"; (21) "transformation" and (29) – "CCN" "NPPF".

40. Chairman's Announcements

(a) National Multi-Faith Week

The Chairman made the Council aware that 16 to 22 November 2014 was designated national multi-faith week. Kent County Council's Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education, which was chaired by Mr Manion, was celebrating this by holding its second youth conference on 18 November 2014, which would provide an opportunity for young people to improve their understanding of multi-faith issues.

(b) FT Innovative Lawyers Awards 2014

The Chairman stated that he was delighted to announce that on 8 October, Geoff Wild had been named Most Innovative European In-House Lawyer at the FT Innovative Lawyers' Awards 2014. The FT awards were widely recognised as being the most prestigious international legal awards and were the product of in-depth independent research. In winning the award, Geoff fought off competition from across Europe, including General Counsel for EDF Energy, Reckitt Benckiser, E.ON and Roche Products, and was the first public sector lawyer ever to receive the award. The awards panel said "After transforming the council's legal team into a revenue generator, Geoff Wild is recognised as an industry leader and has had a positive impact on perceptions of public-sector lawyers".

(c) CASA (Consortium for Assistive Solutions Adoption) Award for Innovative Excellence

The Chairman stated that he was pleased to announce that the Kent Integration Pioneer Innovation Hub had been recognised by the EU, as a site of excellence. The Integration Pioneer team, together with the international team in Brussels, had delivered innovative work around assistive technologies creating an Innovation Hub and integrated working with the health service.

The work of the Kent team under the leadership of Dr Robert Stewart, Chairman of the Integration Pioneer, and Anne Tidmarsh, Director Older People and Physical Disability, had been recognised as a good practice example and the award was received by Mr Gibbens at a conference in Brussels of all CASA representatives.

(d) Dandelion Time's 'Rowathon'

The Chairman expressed his thanks to Members and officers who gave such generous donations in support of Dandelion Time's 'Rowathon' earlier this month.

He informed the Council that Dandelion Time was a charitable project for children and young people displaying emotional distress through aggressive or withdrawn behaviour. The charity, based in West Farleigh, helped children to overcome previous suffering, develop confidence and self-esteem, and discover a new and positive path to follow.

He explained that a team of seven KCC representatives managed to row more than 10,000 metres in 50 minutes, and in so doing raised over £1,000 for the charity, which would make a significant difference to the life chances of the children and families that came to Dandelion Time.

(e) Visit to HMS Kent

The Chairman stated that he was very proud to have been invited to visit HMS Kent at Portsmouth prior to its six-month deployment focusing on maritime security operations in the Indian Ocean.

41. Questions

In accordance with Procedure Rule 1.17(4), eight questions were asked and replies given, which are attached as an appendix to the minutes.

42. Report by Leader of the Council (Oral)

- (1) The Leader updated the County Council on events since the previous meeting.
- (2) Mr Carter referred to the launch of the public consultation for the medium term budget proposals for the next three years. He expressed the view that these had generally been well received. He hoped that opposition Members were pleased with the content, which was a rigorous thrust to deliver effective and efficient services to residents and businesses making sure that best value was extracted from every council tax payer's pound. He believed that the solutions that had been arrived at would allow the Council to pursue with rigour the continuous improvement of good quality frontline services. He referred to what had been said by Mr Hill earlier in the meeting in relation to the community wardens. This related to finding other ways of supplementing community wardens with community volunteer wardens. There was also the potential for parish and town councils to precept if they wanted to retain the same or increased presence.
- (3) Mr Carter mentioned that the transformation agenda was gaining pace under the banner of Facing the Challenge and big decisions would be needed very soon. He therefore felt sure that Members would support the principle of establishing the all-party advisory board on commissioning which would be chaired by Mr Hotson, subject to the Council agreeing the recommendations later in the meeting.

- (4) Mr Carter then referred to the need to focus on working towards the outcomes framework for the authority, which was currently scheduled to come to the December County Council meeting. That framework would start to articulate the outcomes required to achieve the component parts that made up the complex array of services and support that was delivered in Kent. There was a need for clarity about the component parts of KCC's business to ensure they were delivered in the most efficient and effective way. He said that it was important to ensure that services were effective and efficient regardless of who was commissioned to provide them. Even if services were retained in house the same business rigour had to be applied to the way they were configured and delivered. This message needed to pervade the whole organisation. He stated that KCC needed to be much more commercial in how services were delivered.
- (5) Mr Carter mentioned the publication of "NHS Five Year Forward View" which had been produced by Simon Stevens (Chief Executive of NHS England). The report majored on the point that there was no one size fits all solution and, therefore, there was no need for a homogenous delivery pattern across the NHS. This was very much in line with the direction of travel that KCC was taking in delivering social care and public health with clinical commissioning groups and providers such as the acute hospital trusts. This document started to deliver the vision of good quality neighbourhood national health services and social care emphasising the role of community based preventative services. It suggested that the Department of Health should allow different approaches rather than the one size fits all approach imposed by Whitehall, which inhibited innovation across the country.
- (6) Mr Carter then referred to devolution and the opportunity for county councils across the country to draw Westminster and Whitehall's attention to the potential of local government. Whitehall should be encouraged to empower good local decision making at the right local level. An example of this was the skills agenda where funding was determined by Whitehall and not by local businesses who were best placed to determine the courses that needed to be run to fit their skills requirements. In relation to skills for the public sector he referred to the need for skills training for the provision of community health services.
- (7) Mr Carter stated that he was working with the County Council Network (CCN) to draw the attention of ministers and shadow ministers to the art of the possible and to remind them of the track record county councils had established in saving significant amounts of public money. This had been done through a rigorous efficiency drive to deliver more effective services. The "one place one budget" concept was beginning to gain traction. This was not just about a bit of devolution to city regions and thereby totally ignoring 40% of the rest of the country. Total public expenditure in Kent was in excess of £10bn. If the delivery of 5% efficiencies could be imposed along with the freedoms and flexibility to make good locally based decisions, it would save £500 million a year in the delivery of Kent public services. The 5% over three years could equate to £30bn nationally if the knowledge gained was applied to other areas of significant public expenditure.
- (8) Mr Latchford, the Leader of the Opposition, congratulated Mr Wild on the award that he had been given. On behalf of himself and Mr Birkby, Mr Latchford said that they had enjoyed representing their group at the Poppy Day Launch on 22 October and he referred to the excellent work of the Royal British Legion.

- (9) Mr Latchford responded to the Leader's report by referring to the medium term budget proposals. He stated that he accepted there would have to be significant cuts. In relation to the draft budget proposals and that he looked forward to the public response on what they perceived to be priority areas. He went on to say that his group would monitor the situation and that at this stage it would be premature to make observations and recommendations. However, he was able to say that already certain proposals did not meet with his Group's approval. He stated that with the national debt at an all-time high of £1.5 trillion and borrowing continuing to increase it was patently clear that there were many more challenges to come.
- (10) Mr Latchford mentioned that like all group leaders he had been grateful to have been included in the briefings on the transformation process and that all officers involved should be congratulated on facing such a complex task so professionally. He stated that again there were areas of unease and although the opposition party would be supporting the commissioning framework and the continuing transformation process each step would be subject to scrutiny.
- (11) Mr Latchford then referred to devolution. Following the concessions promised during the Scottish referendum there was now a ground-swell of opinion to increase devolution in England. He expressed support for devolution to second tier local authorities but recognised that it was early days and it was important that additional responsibilities were properly funded. He expressed the view that Parliament was basically governed by the European Union and that this would be a major issue in next year's election. He explained that his group supported the form of devolution where there was an English Parliament making decisions for the country as a whole on such issues as defence, foreign affairs, immigration and big infrastructure projects. He stated that he did not see any other powers exercised by Parliament that could not be carried out in Kent. In Kent there were 1.6m people which was more than some US states that had full powers. He believed there was too much interference from Whitehall and that Kent should have more power devolved to it; however, it this must be properly funded.
- (12) Mr Latchford then mentioned the recently published "NHS Five Year Forward View" and stated that he was clear that much needed to be done to deliver good NHS services throughout the UK.
- (13) Mr Latchford concluded by saying that, although, he was present with other group leaders at the Manston Airport briefing, he was surprised that the Leader had not included this in his report. He believed that all Members should be apprised of this major issue.
- (14) Mr Cowan, Leader of the Labour Group, referred to the Medium Term Financial Plan and that KCC was entering this budget consultation with some £93m of cuts having to be made via next year's budget. The Chancellor of the Exchequer was supposed to have eliminated the budget deficit by this time and for there to be some easement in budget cuts. However, the austerity programme continued and he expressed the view that if these policies continued the deficit might not be eliminated until 2020. He would encourage as many people as possible to give their views in the budget consultation to help assess the budget proposals.

- (15) Mr Cowan stated that his group's budget amendments would be designed to ease the burden on those on middle and low incomes. He noted that in the budget consultation views were being sought on a Council Tax rise of 1.99%. His group was prepared to accept this increase providing that the £10m raised was spent on maintaining frontline services and specifically helped those in previously mentioned income groups.
- (16) Mr Cowan referred to the "NHS Five Year Forward View". He expressed the view that this should start at the bottom and then push through to the rest of the National Health Service. He stated that the growing crisis in recruitment and retention of GPs was gaining increased attention in the media. A large proportion of GPs were in their 50s and GPs had an average retirement age of 59. Newly qualified doctors were less keen than their predecessors to take on the additional financial worries of a partnership and were reluctant to accept the unsociable, long hours of working as a GP. He mentioned that Concordia Health, which ran surgeries in Dover and Thanet, had restructured their business and had requested the termination of their contract to provide these less profitable surgeries. He emphasised that 90% of GPs were private contractors and were driven by the same need of all small businesses to turn a profit. He agreed that the drive to have more practice nurses in GP surgeries was a sensible one. However, there were problems of recruitment as most nurses were hospital rather than community trained.
- (17) Mr Cowan mentioned the transformation agenda. He stated that phase 1, due by May 2015, was critical in terms of the savings that had to be made and in ensuring that the Council was moving into a commissioning programme in the right way.
- (18) Mr Cowan emphasised the importance of keeping control of the management of the transformation programme. He believed that it would be better for KCC to keep control of in-house services and to retain a minimum of 51% of whatever was commission externally.
- (19) Mr Cowan expressed the view that it was too early to discuss devolution.
- (20) Mrs Dean, Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group, referred to the budget consultation and stated that her group was not happy with this as it invited the population of Kent to vote for "motherhood and apple pie". The consultation did not refer to specific service cuts or specific developments and, therefore, was not a budget consultation. Although Mr Latchford had made reference to budget proposals she had not yet seen a draft budget proposal.
- (21) Regarding the suggestions made by the Leader for the funding of the community wardens, Mrs Dean stated that if her parish council wished to pay for a community warden it would have to increase the parish precept by 300%. She stated that parish councils did not have the facility to meet this kind of expenditure. She mentioned that she had met with the Police and Crime Commissioner to ask whether it was possible for the parish council to pay for a police officer. Mrs Dean had been strongly advised that such an officer would still be regarded as part of the general complement and there would be no guarantee therefore, that they would work in specific parishes.

- (22) Mrs Dean referred to devolution and welcomed the all-party support she anticipated for this during the debate later in the meeting. She stated that devolution had been a central policy of the Liberal Democrat party for many years but that governments of all descriptions had been somewhat schizophrenic with regard to devolution. Governments could devolve and they could claw back control. She mentioned the Localism Act was which supposed to provide control over planning decisions to the local communities. However, the National Planning Policy Framework allowed the Secretary of State to sweep that aside. As far as KCC was concerned Mrs Dean wondered how much of the devolution agenda could reasonably be handled when every service was part of a range of restructuring. She stated that she preferred people in this Chamber rather than the people in Whitehall to be running services so the principle had to be right but the devil was in the detail.
- (23) In terms of commissioning and the outcomes framework Mrs Dean referred to two recent reports, which emphasised the gap between the rich and the poor in this country. A recent Cabinet Office report pointed out that the end of this decade might be the first when the attainment gap between children from poor families and those from wealthy families would have got worse rather than better. The report suggested that a new focus was needed in national education policy to ensure that this gap was narrowed. If there was not a new focus, it would take 20 years before the difference in the attainment gap could be halved. She hoped that the Leader would agree that this was one of the priorities in the outcomes framework.
- (24) Mr Whybrow, Leader of the Independents' Group, stated that he welcomed the CCN's report on devolution. He was concerned about the lack of publicity for the report and would like the Leader to confirm whether there had been a positive reaction to the report from the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government. He believed that the report highlighted some anomalies in the allocation of monies across London, the cities and county councils. The report also had some very good recommendations such as a five year budget settlement, fully integrated budgets and a Care Act reserve fund.
- (25) Mr Whybrow stated that he particularly liked what the CCN's report said about Council Tax; it talked about revaluation and a review of the number of bands. He expressed the view that at least one new Council Tax band should be introduced at the higher end. He stated that for every £1 of additional tax raised by this government, it had made £9 of spending cuts. The CCN had said that 87% of county councils said that their budget pressures were severe. Finally the report said that local government finance was becoming increasingly unsustainable. He believed that this should be given more publicity otherwise, without a major restructuring of the way in which local government was funded, the cuts that the Council had to make this year would become harder to achieve.
- (26) In replying to the other group leaders' responses, Mr Carter stated that the CCN document was gaining real traction. He stated that he and the chairman of the CCN had been invited to the Cabinet Office to meet Joseph Johnson MP. Mr Johnson insisted that they spoke to Lord Heseltine and Greg Clerk MP regarding Local Enterprise Partnerships and general devolution to county councils. Mr Johnson had also insisted that they had a high level meeting with the Treasury about the content of this document.

- (27) Mr Carter agreed that in relation to devolution the devil was in the detail, the track record of being empowered with no money was quite a significant one. He stated that it was not necessarily about the transfer of functions and powers to local government, it was also about having the influence to bring people together in a sensible way, to make partnerships deliver and having the necessary tools to take action if those partnerships did not come together.
- (28) Mr Carter stated that he had been assured by Mr Gough that the educational attainment of those on free school meals had improved in last 12 months. KCC had been focusing on this for some time.
- (29) In relation to retaining services in-house, Mr Carter stated that there were many voluntary, charitable and community organisations that needed to be empowered who may then be able to provide some services better than the in-house provider. The adoption service was an example of this; the adoption statistics had been greatly improved by the transfer of that function to another body.
- (30) Mr Carter stated that all group leaders had received a briefing by David Smith, Director of Economic Development, on KCC's position on the future of Manston Airport and the suggestion that there may or may not be a Compulsory Purchase Order. If Members would like a briefing, David Smith would be pleased to assist.
- (31) Regarding the relationship with Europe and the future potential of that relationship, Mr Carter stated that before the referendum took place there was a need to have a sensible debate around what the strengths and positives had been and issues that may be to our detriment.

43. A collaborative approach to Member involvement in Commissioning - Report of the Member Working Group

(1) Mr Hotson moved and Mr Carter seconded the following recommendations as set out on page 29 of the report:

"County Council is asked to:

- a) Note and comment on the deliberations and findings set out in section 3 of the report.
- b) Agree that a cross-party, informal advisory board, chaired by a backbench Member, should consider commissioning decisions in depth and advise Cabinet Committees accordingly before Key Decisions are made, with the arrangement reviewed after a 12 month period
- c) Agree that given the majority of significant commissioning decisions facing the council over the next 12 months will come from the Facing the Challenge transformation programme, that the advisory board should also take on the responsibilities of the Transformation Board, with the arrangement reviewed after a 12 month period

- d) Delegate to the Head of Democratic Services, in consultation with the Group Leaders, the establishment of a cross-party, advisory board as set out in this report."
- (2) RESOLVED that the recommendations set out in paragraph (1) above be approved.

44. Motions for Time Limited Debate

a) Devolution

(1) Miss Carey moved and Mr Marsh seconded the following motion:

"Kent County Council calls upon central government to devolve more powers and money not just to Scotland but to existing levels of local government at county, district and parish level. We also call for a transfer of powers from unelected and remote quangos to existing democratically elected bodies."

(2) Dr Eddy moved and Mr Truelove seconded the following amendment:

"Kent County Council calls upon Central Government to devolve more powers and finance from central government to appropriate communities across England. We call for a Constitutional Convention as proposed by the Local Government Association, to determine what powers should be devolved in England and to determine the appropriate structure to dispense these powers in a more democratic and accountable way. We also call for a well-planned transfer of power from unelected and remote quangos to democratically elected bodies"

(3) Mr Parry moved and Mr Baldock seconded the procedural motion "that the question be put" and the votes cast were as follows:

For (63)

Mrs A Allen, Mr M Angell, Mr D Baker, Mr M Baldock, Mr M Balfour, Mr R Bird, Mr N Bond, Mr A Bowles, Mr D Brazier, Mr R Brookbank, Mr L Burgess, Miss S Carey, Mr P Carter, Mr N Chard, Mr I Chittenden, Mr B Clark, Mrs P Cole, Mr G Cowan, Mrs M Crabtree, Ms J Cribbon, Mr A Crowther, Mrs V Dagger, Mr D Daley, Mr M Dance, Mr J Davies, Mrs T Dean, Dr M Eddy, Mr J Elenor, Mr T Gates, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R Gough, Mr M Harrison, Mr M Heale, Mr M Hill, Mr C Hoare, Mrs S Hohler, Mr S Holden, Mr P Homewood, Mr E Hotson, Ms S Howes, Mr G Koowaree, Mr G Lymer, Mr S Manion, Mr A Marsh, Mr F McKenna, Mr B Neaves, Mr M Northey, Mr P Oakford, Mr J Ozog, Mr R Parry, Mr C Pearman, Mr L Ridings, Mr J Scholes, Mr T Shonk, Mr C Simkins, Mr J Simmonds, Mr C Smith, Mr B Sweetland, Mr A Terry, Mr M Vye, Mr M Whybrow, Mr A Wickham, Mrs Z Wiltshire.

Against (9)

Mr H Birkby, Mrs P Brivio, Mr C Caller, Ms A Harrison, Mr R Latchford, Mr T Maddison, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mr W Scobie, Mr N Thandi.

Abstain (2)

Mrs M Elenor, Mrs P Stockell.

Procedural motion carried

(4) The Chairman then put the amendment outlined in paragraph (2) above to the vote and the votes cast were as follows:

For (19)

Mr N Bond, Mrs P Brivio, Mr L Burgess, Mr C Caller, Mr G Cowan, Ms J Cribbon, Mr D Daley, Dr M Eddy, Ms A Harrison, Ms S Howes, Mr T Maddison, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mr W Scobie, Mr T Shonk, Mr D Smyth, Mr A Terry, Mr N Thandi, Mr R Truelove, Mr M Whybrow.

Against (55)

Mrs A Allen, Mr M Angell, Mr M Baldock, Mr M Balfour, Mr R Bird, Mr H Birkby, Mr A Bowles, Mr D Brazier, Mr R Brookbank, Mr P Carter, Mr N Chard, Mr I Chittenden, Mr B Clark, Mrs P Cole, Mr G Cooke, Mrs M Crabtree, Mr A Crowther, Mrs V Dagger, Mr M Dance, Mr J Davies, Mrs T Dean, Mr J Elenor, Mrs M Elenor, Mr T Gates, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R Gough, Mr M Harrison, Mr M Heale, Mr M Hill, Mr C Hoare, Mrs S Hohler, Mr S Holden, Mr P Homewood, Mr E Hotson, Mr A King, Mr J Kite, Mr R Latchford, Mr G Lymer, Mr S Manion, Mr A Marsh, Mr F McKenna, Mr B Neaves, Mr M Northey, Mr P Oakford, Mr J Ozog, Mr R Parry, Mr C Pearman, Mr L Ridings, Mr J Scholes, Mr C Simkins, Mr J Simmonds, Mrs P Stockell, Mr B Sweetland, Mr M Vye, Mr A Wickham.

Abstain (5)

Mr D Baker, Miss S Carey, Mr G Koowaree, Mr C Smith, Mrs Z Wiltshire.

Amendment lost

- (5) Mr Vye moved and Mrs Dean seconded the following amendment:
- "KCC calls upon central government to devolve more powers and budgetary responsibility, not just to Scotland but to existing levels of local government at county, district and parish level, and to restore powers and responsibility taken from these democratically elected authorities, for example under the current academy schools programme. We also call for a transfer of powers from unelected and remote quangos to existing democratically elected bodies."
- (6) Mr Parry moved and Mr Sweetland seconded the procedural motion "that the question be put" and the votes cast were as follows:

For (58)

Mrs A Allen, Mr M Angell, Mr D Baker, Mr H Birkby, Mr N Bond, Mr A Bowles, Mr D Brazier, Mrs P Brivio, Mr R Brookbank, Mr L Burgess, Mr C Caller, Miss S Carey, Mr P Carter, Mr N Chard, Mrs P Cole, Mr G Cooke, Mrs M Crabtree, Mr A Crowther, Mrs V Dagger, Mr M Dance, Mr J Davies, Mr J Elenor, Mr T Gates, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R

Gough, Ms A Harrison, Mr M Harrison, Mr M Hill, Mrs S Hohler, Mr S Holden, Mr P Homewood, Mr E Hotson, Ms S Howes, Mr A King, Mr J Kite, Mr R Long, Mr G Lymer, Mr T Maddison, Mr S Manion, Mr A Marsh, Mr F McKenna, Mr M Northey, Mr P Oakford, Mr J Ozog, Mr R Parry, Mr C Pearman, Mr L Ridings, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mr J Scholes, Mr T Shonk, Mr C Simkins, Mr J Simmonds, Mr C Smith, Mr B Sweetland, Mr N Thandi, Mr M Whybrow, Mr A Wickham, Mrs Z Wiltshire.

Against (19)

Mr M Baldock, Mr R Bird, Mr I Chittenden, Mr B Clark, Ms J Cribbon, Mr G Cowan, Mr D Daley, Mrs T Dean, Dr M Eddy, Mrs M Elenor, Mr M Heale, Mr C Hoare, Mr G Koowaree, Mr R Latchford, Mr B Neaves, Mr W Scobie, Mr A Terry, Mr R Truelove, Mr M Vye.

Abstain (0)

Procedural motion carried

(7) The Chairman put the amendment outlined in paragraph (5) above to the vote and the votes cast were as follows:

For (17)

Mr M Baldock, Mr R Bird, Mr N Bond, Mr L Burgess, Mr I Chittenden, Mr B Clark, Mr D Daley, Mrs T Dean, Mr T Maddison, Mr F McKenna, Mr G Koowaree, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mr W Scobie, Mr T Shonk, Mr A Terry, Mr M Vye, Mr M Whybrow.

Against (57)

Mrs A Allen, Mr M Angell, Mr D Baker, Mr A Bowles, Mr D Brazier, Mr R Brookbank, Mr C Caller, Miss S Carey, Mr P Carter, Mr N Chard, Mrs P Cole, Mr G Cooke, Mr G Cowan, Mrs M Crabtree, Ms J Cribbon, Mr A Crowther, Mrs V Dagger, Mr M Dance, Mr J Davies, Dr M Eddy, Mr J Elenor, Mr T Gates, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R Gough, Ms A Harrison, Mr M Harrison, Mr M Heale, Mr M Hill, Mr C Hoare, Mrs S Hohler, Mr S Holden, Mr P Homewood, Mr E Hotson, Ms S Howes, Mr A King, Mr J Kite, Mr R Latchford, Mr R Long, Mr G Lymer, Mr S Manion, Mr A Marsh, Mr B Neaves, Mr M Northey, Mr P Oakford, Mr J Ozog, Mr R Parry, Mr C Pearman, Mr L Ridings, Mr J Scholes, Mr C Simkins, Mr J Simmonds, Mr C Smith, Mr D Smyth, Mr B Sweetland, Mr N Thandi, Mr R Truelove, Mr A Wickham.

Abstain (3)

Mr H Birkby, Mrs M Elenor, Mrs Z Wiltshire.

Amendment lost

(8) Mr Caller moved and Mr Scobie seconded the procedural motion that "the question be put" in relation to the original motion and the votes cast were as follows:

For (56)

Mrs A Allen, Mr M Angell, Mr D Baker, Mr N Bond, Mr A Bowles, Mr R Brookbank, Mr L Burgess, Mr C Caller, Miss S Carey, Mr P Carter, Mr N Chard, Mrs P Cole, Mr G Cooke, Mr G Cowan, Mrs M Crabtree, Ms J Cribbon, Mr A Crowther, Mrs V Dagger, Mr D Daley, Mr M Dance, Dr M Eddy, Mr J Elenor, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R Gough, Ms A Harrison, Mr M Harrison, Mr M Hill, Mrs S Hohler, Mr S Holden, Mr P Homewood, Mr E Hotson, Ms S Howes, Mr J Kite, Mr G Koowaree, Mr R Long, Mr G Lymer, Mr T Maddison, Mr S Manion, Mr A Marsh, Mr M Northey, Mr P Oakford, Mr R Parry, Mr C Pearman, Mr L Ridings, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mr J Scholes, Mr W Scobie, Mr T Shonk, Mr C Simkins, Mr J Simmonds, Mr C Smith, Mr D Smyth, Mr B Sweetland, Mr A Terry, Mr N Thandi, Mr R Truelove.

Against (15)

Mr M Baldock, Mr R Bird, Mr H Birkby, Mr D Brazier, Mr J Davies, Mrs T Dean, Mrs M Elenor, Mr T Gates, Mr M Heale, Mr C Hoare, Mr R Latchford, Mr F McKenna, Mr B Neaves, Mr M Whybrow, Mr A Wickham.

Abstain (2)

Mr I Chittenden, Mr B Clark.

Procedural motion carried

(9) The Chairman put the original motion set out in paragraph (1) above to the vote and the votes cast were as follows:

For (77)

Mrs A Allen, Mr M Angell, Mr D Baker, Mr M Baldock, Mr R Bird, Mr H Birkby, Mr N Bond, Mr A Bowles, Mr D Brazier, Mrs P Brivio, Mr R Brookbank, Mr L Burgess, Mr C Caller, Miss S Carey, Mr P Carter, Mr N Chard, Mr I Chittenden, Mr B Clark, Mrs P Cole, Mr G Cooke, Mr G Cowan, Mrs M Crabtree, Ms J Cribbon, Mr A Crowther, Mrs V Dagger, Mr D Daley, Mr M Dance, Mr J Davies, Mrs T Dean, Dr M Eddy, Mr T Gates, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R Gough, Ms A Harrison, Mr M Harrison, Mr M Heale, Mr M Hill, Mr C Hoare, Mrs S Hohler, Mr S Holden, Mr P Homewood, Mr E Hotson, Ms S Howes, Mr A King, Mr J Kite, Mr G Koowaree, Mr R Latchford, Mr R Long, Mr G Lymer, Mr T Maddison, Mr S Manion, Mr A Marsh, Mr F McKenna, Mr B Neaves, Mr M Northey, Mr P Oakford, Mr J Ozog, Mr R Parry, Mr C Pearman, Mr L Ridings, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mr J Scholes, Mr W Scobie, Mr T Shonk, Mr C Simkins, Mr J Simmonds, Mr C Smith, Mr D Smyth, Mrs P Stockell, Mr B Sweetland, Mr A Terry, Mr N Thandi, Mr R Truelove, Mr M Vye, Mr M Whybrow, Mr A Wickham, Mrs Z Wiltshire.

Against (1)

Mr J Elenor.

Abstain (1)

Mrs M Elenor.

Motion carried

(10) RESOLVED: that Kent County Council calls upon central government to devolve more powers and money not just to Scotland but to existing levels of local government at county, district and parish level. We also call for a transfer of powers from unelected and remote quangos to existing democratically elected bodies.

b) Reduction in the voting age

(1) Mr Clark moved and Mr Bird seconded the following motion:

"This Council supports reducing the voting age to 16 and believe that encouraging participation in the political process is a valuable means of engaging young people in modern society.

We recognise the important contribution of 16 and 17 year olds to the recent Scottish Independence referendum and believe that the young people of Kent should also play a role in determining the future of their county and country.

Therefore, we propose that the Chairman should write an open letter to the Prime Minister urging him to introduce legislation to reduce the voting age to 16."

(2) Following a debate the Chairman put the motion outlined in paragraph (1) above to the vote and the votes cast were as follows:

For (56)

Mrs A Allen, Mr M Baldock, Mr R Bird, Mr N Bond, Mr A Bowles, Mr D Brazier, Mrs P Brivio, Mr R Brookbank, Mr L Burgess, Mr C Caller, Miss S Carey, Mr P Carter, Mr N Chard, Mr I Chittenden, Mr B Clark, Mrs P Cole, Mr G Cooke, Mr G Cowan, Mrs M Crabtree, Mr A Crowther, Mr D Daley, Mr M Dance, Mr J Davies, Mrs T Dean, Dr M Eddy, Mr T Gates, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R Gough, Ms A Harrison, Mr M Harrison, Mr M Heale, Mr M Hill, Mr S Holden, Mr P Homewood, Mr E Hotson, Ms S Howes, Mr A King, Mr J Kite, Mr G Koowaree, Mr G Lymer, Mr T Maddison, Mr S Manion, Mr A Marsh, Mr M Northey, Mr J Ozog, Mr R Parry, Mr C Pearman, Mr L Ridings, Mr W Scobie, Mr J Simmonds, Mr D Smyth, Mr B Sweetland, Mr N Thandi, Mr R Truelove, Mr M Vye, Mr M Whybrow.

Against (17)

Mr M Angell, Mr D Baker, Mr H Birkby, Mr J Elenor, Mrs M Elenor, Mrs V Dagger, Mr C Hoare, Mrs S Hohler, Mr R Long, Mr F McKenna, Mr J Scholes, Mr T Shonk, Mr C Simkins, Mr C Smith, Mr A Terry, Mr A Wickham, Mrs Z Wiltshire.

Abstain (4)

Ms J Cribbon, Mr R Latchford, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mrs P Stockell.

(3) RESOLVED: that this Council supports reducing the voting age to 16 and believe that encouraging participation in the political process is a valuable means of engaging young people in modern society.

We recognise the important contribution of 16 and 17 year olds to the recent Scottish Independence referendum and believe that the young people of Kent should also play a role in determining the future of their county and country.

Therefore, we propose that the Chairman should write an open letter to the Prime Minister urging him to introduce legislation to reduce the voting age to 16.